the Ernst Freund Lecture was delivered by The Honorable Charles E. Wyzanski, Jr., Judge of the United States District Court for Massachusetts. On March 1, 1960, the Ernst Freund Lecture will be delivered by The Right Honorable The Lord Alfred Thompson Denning.

The C. R. Musser Lectureship, an endowed lectureship in honor of a distinguished citizen, was established by the University in 1955 out of funds previously given to the Law School by the General Service Foundation. The lectureship is awarded for a public lecture on some phase of the problems of government, to be given by an experienced citizen who has held public office.

The Henry C. Simons Memorial Lectureship was established in 1955 as a biennial lectureship in the field of law and economics, in honor of Henry C. Simons, for many years a distinguished member of the Faculty of the Law School and of the Department of Economics. The first Simons Lecture was given in February, 1958, by George Stigler, then Professor of Economics, Columbia University, on "The Goals of Economic Policy." The second Simons Lecture will be delivered on November 18, 1959, by Professor Jacob Viner of Princeton University.

Suitable dedicatory exercises and a special convocation will be held during 1959-60 to celebrate the completion of the new law buildings. The cornerstone ceremonies for the new law buildings were held on May 28, 1958. Participating in the ceremonies were The Right Honorable The Viscount Kilmuir of Creich, Lord High Chancellor of Great Britain, and The Honorable Earl Warren, Chief Justice of the United States.

XVI. Student Activities and Honors

The University of Chicago Law Review, founded in 1933, is published by the School under the management of a Board of Editors composed of students. Students ranking highest in scholarship upon completion of their first year are invited to become competitors for election to the staff of the Review. From this group the editorial staff and the Board of Editors are chosen. For the year 1958-59, the Editor-in-Chief was Alan Washburn. The Managing Editors were Kenneth Howell and George Saunders. The Associate Editors were Richard Allen, Merlin Baker, George Bobrinskoy, Robert Doan, Michael Dou ty, R. Corydon Finch, John Gilhooly, Kenneth Haberman, Julius Kaplan, Mark Lieberman, Robert Lofts, Robert Martineau, Frank Mayer, Eric Rosenfeld, Herma Hill Schreter, Amy Scupi, Richard Scupi, and John Voortman. The Co-Editors-in-Chief for 1959-60 are Howard Miller and Joseph Sax. Managing Editors are Neil Adelman, David Floyd, and Robert Hamilton. The Associate Editors are Roger Bernhardt, Matt Eytan, Joseph Kaplan, Monroe McKay, Edward O'Dell, Arthur Smith, and Stephen Waite.

The Moot Court Committee conducts the Hinton Competition, a two-year round-robin moot court program open to all students after their first year who wish to advance their technique in the art of brief writing and oral argument. Prizes are awarded to winners of the competition; the team that represents the Law School in national competition is selected from among the most successful competitors in the second year. Chairman of the Committee during the academic year 1958-59 was Frederic S. Lane. The Committee made the following awards for achievement in the 1958-59 competition: Frederic S. Lane, George L. Saunders, Jr., competition winners; Stuart Applebaum, Jon Smock, Arthur Winoker, best brief; Robert Rachlin, best oral argument. The Law School's team in the 1958-59 national competition was composed of Rufus Cook, Robert Doan, and Michael Padnos. The 1959-60 national moot court team is composed

The Student Lawyer Journal, national publication of the American Law Student Association, is published in Chicago. Its editorial staff is composed entirely of University of Chicago Law School students, chosen for their writing ability. The student staff is responsible for all aspects of the publication. Editorial consultants are Jo Desha Lucas, Associate Professor of Law; Earl Hagen, Director, American Bar Association Law Student Program; and James M. Spiro, American Bar Association Director of Activities. The Editor-in-Chief for 1958–59 was Gloria Martinez; for 1959–60, the Editor-in-Chief is Elliott Cohen.

The Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic, made possible through a gift from Mr. Edwin F. Mandel, was established in 1957 to provide needed legal services for indigent persons and for the training of law school students in the handling of cases under supervision. Henry J. Kaganiec is Director of the Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic. The faculty committee on the clinic is composed of Nicholas Katzenbach, Chairman, Francis Allen, and Malcolm Sharp. The 1958–59 officers were Matthew Brislawn, President; Maurice Oppenheim, First Vice-President; James Weldon, Second Vice-President; Joseph Murphy, Secretary-Treasurer. The officers for 1959–60 are H. Collyer Church, President; David James, First Vice-President; Evan Kjellenberg, Second Vice-President; and Philip Bransky, Secretary-Treasurer.

The University of Chicago Law School Student Association is composed of the entire student body and is affiliated with the American Law Student Association, a national organization sponsored by the Junior Bar Conference and the American Bar Association. The Student Association sponsors various legal and social functions throughout the year. The 1958–59 officers were John Gilhooly, Chairman; William Doherty, Secretary; Richard Newhouse, Treasurer. The President of the Senior Class for 1959–60 and Chairman of the Council of the Association is Jerome Dixon.

The Chicago Chapter of the Order of the Coif is an honor society founded to encourage and to advance the ethical standards of the legal profession. Its members are elected each spring from the ten per cent of the graduating class who rank highest in scholarship. In 1958–59 the elected members were Richard H. Allen, George V. Bobrinskoy, Jr., Robert L. Doan, John V. Gilhooly, Herma C. Hill, Kenneth Howell, Frank D. Mayer, Jr., and George L. Saunders, Jr.

The Joseph Henry Beale Prize, named in honor of the first Dean of the Law School, is awarded to the first-year student whose work in the first-year tutorial program is judged by the Faculty to be most worthy of special recognition. The prize for 1958–59 was awarded to Nancy McDermid.

The Walter Wheeler Cook Prize, named in honor of a distinguished member of the Law Faculty from 1910 to 1916, is awarded to the student whose work in the second-year tutorial program is judged by the Faculty to be most worthy of special recognition. The prize for 1958–59 was awarded to Norman G. Kurland and Joseph L. Sax.

The Institute for International Order offers two prizes for winning essays on subjects designated annually.

The Lawyers Co-operative Publishing Company and the Bancroft-Whitney Company, joint publishers of American Jurisprudence, annually make available the relevant separately bound subjects from American Jurisprudence as an award to the highest ranking students in various course areas.

The Lawyers Title Award, sponsored by the Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation,
Richmond, Virginia, is awarded annually to a student for excellence in work in the field of real estate. The award was given in 1958–59 to Richard H. Allen.

The Edwin F. Mandel Award is made annually to that member of the graduating class who, during his law school career, has contributed the most to the Legal Aid program, both in the quality of the work done and the conscientious exercise of legal aid responsibilities. The award for 1958–59 was made to Matthew E. Brislawn.

The Nathan Burkan Memorial Competition Prizes, sponsored by the American Society of Composers, Authors, and Publishers, are available annually to two students whose papers in the field of copyright law are deemed by the Faculty to be worthy of the prizes.

The "Wall Street Journal" Award is given annually to a student for excellence in work in the field of corporation law. The award for 1958–59 was given to Robert F. Lusher.

XVII. Placement

The Law School maintains a placement office to help students find suitable employment after their graduation. In collaboration with the Law School Alumni Association, special placement groups in large cities, and the University's general placement office, it secures information about openings in law offices, corporations, and government offices throughout the country, and furnishes information about University of Chicago Law School graduates. The Placement Office also assists in arrangements for teaching positions; through the Comparative Law Center, efforts are made to place properly qualified students in research centers and other institutions abroad and to help foreign students to find opportunities for study and research in American law.

Early in their third year, students submit placement data indicating their plans and preferences after graduation. It is important that these records, which facilitate appropriate recommendations, be filled out accurately and kept up to date. Accordingly students whose plans or preferences change during the third year are asked to indicate such changes to the Placement Office. In the event that a student enters the armed forces following his graduation, the facilities of the Placement Office are available to him upon his return to civilian status. All third-year students have a personal interview with Dean Ratcliffe, who is Director of Placement. Other members of the faculty are also available for consultation and advice.

XVIII. Buildings and Library

Beginning with the Autumn Quarter, 1959, the Law School will occupy the new Law Buildings on the south side of the Midway Plaisance, connected with the Burton-Judson Residence Halls on the west, and opposite the American Bar Center on the east. The Law Quadrangle contains four connected buildings: the Auditorium-Courtroom Building; the Classroom-Seminar Building; the Library-Office Building; the Administration Building. The buildings, designed by Eero Saarinen, use twentieth-century materials, techniques, and design concepts. The architect has related the new buildings in the quadrangle to the Burton-Judson Residence Halls and to the American Bar Center. An open court, with a reflecting pool, is at the center of the group of buildings.

The Auditorium-Courtroom Building contains an auditorium seating 475 and a completely equipped courtroom seating about 190. The Auditorium-Courtroom Building is situated in such a way that it is directly accessible to the public. Rooms on two floors on both sides of the Courtroom are provided for judges, court officials, and lawyers.

The Classroom-Seminar Building lies between the Auditorium Courtroom and the Library-Office Building. There are five Seminar-Conference Rooms, accommodating
18 to 43 students, and four classrooms varying in capacity from 85 to 175. A large area for student lockers and lounges is located on the lower floor. The Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic is also located in the Classroom-Seminar Building with direct access to University Avenue on the east. The Building includes a wide arcade-like corridor that runs along the open court side of the structure and connects with the Auditorium-Courtroom Building.

The Library-Office Building includes a lounge and exhibition and conference area on the first floor. On the second floor is the Reading Room of the Law Library, together with the Library administrative offices, the Rare-Book Room, and two conference and reception rooms. A balcony overlooking the Reading Room is occupied by stacks and study areas, The University of Chicago Law Review offices, and special rooms. Each of the next three floors contains a central core of stacks surrounded by a ring of faculty and research offices. Each floor contains a student study-room, a special collection room, an office for a student organization, and carrels. The Library-Office Building is air conditioned.

The Administration Building contains a suite of offices for the administrative activities of the School and a faculty conference room. The Building also includes a public corridor connecting the Law Buildings with the Burton-Judson Courts, which make available student housing facilities, lounges, dining halls, and private dining rooms.

The Law Library collection covers substantially all fields and systems of law. The Anglo-American Law section contains an almost complete collection of the statutes, session laws, and reported decisions of the courts of each jurisdiction, together with digests, encyclopedias, loose-leaf services, periodicals, and the principal treatises. It includes also an extensive collection of the original briefs and records of cases in the Supreme Court of the United States and a representative collection of the reports and opinions of the federal and state administrative agencies and of the proceedings of the various bar associations. The International and Foreign Law section contains basic source and secondary materials relating to early legal systems and the law of continental European countries, including the latest codes, laws, decisions, and current periodicals. There are also special sections on legal history, including biography, jurisprudence, comparative law, canon law, and international law. Materials on the laws of the oriental countries, ancient and modern, can be found on the Quadrangles in the library of the Oriental Institute. Law students have ready access to the other libraries of the University, to the library of the nearby Public Administrative Service, and to the library of the American Bar Center.

The Law Library has four special funds at its disposal to supplement general library appropriations. These are the James Nelson Raymond Memorial Fund, established in 1929 by Anna L. Raymond as a memorial to her husband, James Nelson Raymond, an eminent businessman of Chicago; the Wallace Heckman Memorial Fund, established in 1929 by Mrs. Wallace Heckman as a memorial to her husband, Wallace Heckman, business manager of the University from 1903 to 1924; the William B. Hale Fund, established in 1944 by the family of Mr. Hale for the collection of materials for research and study in the field of monopoly; and a special Law Library endowment fund which has been established for the Law School under the guidance and with the help of Arnold I. Shure.

XIX. Linn House, the Law School Residence

Linn House is the Law School Men's Residence, located in the Burton-Judson Courts and connected with the new Law School buildings. There are common-room and
lounge facilities as well as living quarters for law students. The lounges in Burton-Judson Courts also provide a meeting place for law students and a center for extracurricular activities of the Law School.

The John B. Phillips Memorial Library, established by the classmates of John B. Phillips, J.D. 1941, who was killed in action at Tarawa, is housed in the Law Lounge in Burton-Judson Courts as an open-shelf collection of general cultural books pertaining to the law.

Applications for residence in Linn House or inquiries concerning other housing accommodations should be addressed to the Student Housing Office, The University of Chicago, 5801 Ellis Avenue, Chicago 37. Arrangements may be made by law students not rooming in the Hall to take regularly lunch or dinner, or both, in the Burton-Judson Courts dining-room. Unless special arrangements are made, the assignment of rooms is for a period of three academic quarters.

XX. International House

International House, with accommodations for over five hundred residents (men and women), is a gift of Mr. John D. Rockefeller, Jr., and is designed primarily to provide living quarters for qualified students from abroad and for American students. Full-time graduate students and upperclass undergraduate students registered in the University of Chicago and in other colleges and universities in the Chicago area are eligible for residence at International House. Accommodations are available also on a quarterly, short-term, or transient basis to visiting foreign faculty members, scholars, research associates, and fellows.

International House offers a varied program of cultural and social activities planned to give opportunities for the students to acquire knowledge of each other’s customs and culture. Informal discussion groups interpret the historical, political, and sociological aspects of various countries. Social events include dances, concerts, receptions, and programs presenting activities of a national character. Opportunities are provided for foreign and American students to work together in many types of student enterprises. A broad program of community hospitality allows foreign students to meet American families and to visit American homes. Tours are arranged quarterly to Chicago’s outstanding industries and historical centers.

The office of the Adviser to Foreign Visitors is located in International House. Foreign students are welcome at any time to consult with the Adviser on immigration matters, on personal problems, and on problems of adjustment to conditions in a new land. Individual consideration is given to each student upon arrival, and efforts are made to relate him or her quickly and in a friendly way to the new environment.

Quarterly rates for rooms in International House are as follows: for double rooms equipped with individual beds, $75.00 to $99.00 per person; for single rooms, $85.00 to $120.00. Weekly short-term rates (applicable for a minimum period of residence of two weeks) are one-tenth of the quarterly rate. The rate by the day is $2.50 per person. All rooms are furnished except for towels, which may be rented for an additional $2.50 per quarter. Moderately priced meals are served in the cafeteria, which is open to all university students and faculty members.

All inquiries should be addressed to the Office of Admissions, International House, 1414 East Fifty-ninth Street, Chicago 37, Illinois.
XXI. The Chapel

RICHARD E. VIKSTROM, A.M., Director of Chapel Music.
HEINRICH FLEISCHER, PH.D., University Organist.
JAMES R. LAWSON, A.B., LAUREAT, Chapel Carillonneur.

Sunday morning services of worship are held throughout the academic year in the Rockefeller Memorial Chapel. Students and faculty members participate in the service. The Dean preaches on about half the Sundays of each quarter; on the other Sundays the guest preachers include members of the Federated Theological Faculty and outstanding churchmen from all parts of the nation and abroad. Special services are scheduled for the major seasons of the Church Year: Advent, Christmas, Lent, Holy Week, and Pentecost. The sacrament of Holy Communion is celebrated each quarter. The Chapel is open daily for private meditation and prayer.

Membership in the University Choir is open to all qualified students. The Choir sings at the Sunday services and, accompanied by members of the Chicago Symphony Orchestra, gives four or five major concerts each year. These include such works as Handel’s The Messiah and Bach’s St. Matthew Passion and Mass in B Minor as well as modern works of sacred music. Frequent organ concerts are given by the University Organist and by distinguished guest organists. Carillon concerts are played each Sunday and Wednesday by the Chapel Carillonneur.

The University Chapel is the center of a wide variety of student groups organized for religious fellowship and activities within the University and for social service in the city. These groups plan their own programs with the advice of counselors or of student pastors chosen by the authorities of their respective churches. The Jewish, Episcopal, and Roman Catholic groups have for their activities houses of their own near the Quadrangles. A number of Protestant groups co-operate with the University in maintaining Chapel House, adjacent to the Chapel at 5810 Woodlawn Avenue, for their joint activities. Information may be secured, and appointments with the officers or counselors of the several groups may be made, through the Chapel office.

XXII. Physical Education

The University has an extensive athletic plant and encourages the broadest participation of its students in the Physical Education program.

The Frank Dickinson Bartlett Gymnasium contains basketball, badminton, and volleyball courts, space for gymnastics, wrestling, fencing, squash, weight lifting, and handball, and a swimming pool. The Field House provides facilities for practice and enjoyment of a variety of athletic sports under favorable conditions in cold months and in bad weather. It contains a removable basketball floor, a track, a baseball diamond and batting cage, five tennis courts, a golf-driving range, and a football practice field. The University also maintains outdoor tennis courts, two large playing fields, baseball diamonds, golf greens, a one-quarter-mile cinder track, and an ice-skating and hockey rink.

Ida Noyes Hall provides equipment for the program of athletics for women. The building contains a gymnasium, dance room, games room, swimming pool, golf cages, bowling alleys, billiard room, and shower and dressing quarters. To the south of Ida Noyes Hall is the Midway Plaisance, where the Chicago Park District provides three hockey fields.